
HARDY/NEAR NORTHSIDE REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

            

 
JOINT MEETING OF THE BOARDS OF DIRECTORS 

 
 July 13, 2020 

            
 

REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER TWENTY-ONE, 
CITY OF HOUSTON, TEXAS 

(HARDY/NEAR NORTHSIDE ZONE) 



 

HARDY/NEAR NORTHSIDE REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
AND 

REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER TWENTY-ONE, CITY OF HOUSTON, TEXAS 
REVISED NOTICE OF JOINT MEETING 

 
TO: THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE HARDY/NEAR NORTHSIDE REDEVELOPMENT 

AUTHORITY AND REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER TWENTY-ONE, CITY OF HOUSTON, 
TEXAS, AND TO ALL OTHER INTERESTED PERSONS:  
 

Notice is hereby given that the Board of Directors of the Hardy/Near Northside Redevelopment Authority (the 
“Authority”) will hold a joint meeting with the Board of Directors of the Reinvestment Zone Number Twenty-One, City 
of Houston, Texas (the “Zone”), open to the public, on Monday, July 13, 2020, at 9:00 a.m., via telephonic 
communication*, dial US Toll Free 1.855.282.6330, when prompted enter Access Code 927 059 740# and join as a 
participant to consider, discuss and adopt such orders, resolutions or motions, and take other direct or indirect actions as 
may be necessary, convenient, or desirable with respect to the following matters: 

* In accordance with section 418.016 of the Texas Government Code, as amended, the Texas Governor has temporarily suspended 
various open meeting statutes that require government officials and members of the public to be physically present at a specified 
meeting location.  As a result, governmental entities, such as Montgomery County Municipal Utility District No. 9, are permitted to 
meet via telephonic meeting.  Members of the public are invited to join the telephonic meeting and may make public comments during 
the public comment portion of the agenda. 

1. Establish quorum and call to order. 
2. Public comments. 
3. Minutes of the previous meetings. 
4. Bookkeeper’s Report: 

(a) Fund balances and disbursements; 
(b) Payment of invoices; and 
(c) Investments. 

5. Authorize Tax Year 2019 Developer Increment Payment to CR V Hardy Yards L.P. 
6. Funding Agreement for BCycle Station at Hardy Yards. 
7. Fulton/English Property Acquisition. 
8. Ratify Master Agreement for Professional Engineering Service, Gauge Engineering, LLC, and approval of:  

(a) Task Order No. 1 – On Call Services; 
(b) Task Order No. 2 – Capital Improvement Plan Development; 
(c) Task Order No. 3 – Preliminary Engineering Services 2600 – 3500 Block Main Street 

9. Presentations, reports, or updates from the Directors, consultants, City of Houston Staff, or others regarding 
development in the Authority and the Zone and implementation of Project Plan and Reinvestment Zone 
Financing Plan. 

10. Executive Session – the Authority: 
(a) confer with legal counsel, Open Meetings Act, V.T.C.A., Government Code § 551.071; 
(b) purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property, Open Meetings Act, V.T.C.A., Government Code   

  § 551.072; and 
(c) economic development negotiations, Open Meetings Act, V.T.C.A., Government Code § 551.087. 

11. Executive Session – the Zone: 
(a) confer with legal counsel, Open Meetings Act, V.T.C.A., Government Code § 551.071; 
(b) purchase exchange, lease or value of real property, Open Meetings Act, V.T.C.A., Government Code 

§551.072; and 
(c) economic development negotiations, Open Meetings Act, V.T.C.A., Government Code § 551.087. 

 
 
        ____________________________________ 
        Clark Stockton Lord  
        Attorney for the Authority and the Zone 

#6199117.1 



 

 1 

MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 
OF 

HARDY/NEAR NORTHSIDE REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
 

June 8, 2020 

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Hardy/Near Northside Redevelopment Authority (the 
“Authority”) convened in regular session, open to the public, on the 8th day of June 2020, and the roll 
was called of the duly constituted officers and members of the Board, to-wit: 

CQ   Edward Reyes  Chair/Assistant Secretary  
CQ   Lloyd Burke   Vice Chair/Investment Officer  
CQ   Sylvia Cavazos Secretary  
CQ   Richard Cantu  Assistant Secretary 
CQ   Fernando Zamarripa Assistant Secretary 
   Mario Castillo  Director 
 
All member of the Board of Directors were present, thus constituting a quorum. 

Also present were: Clark Lord and Brenda Presser of Bracewell LLP; Ralph DeLeon of 
Tifworks; Tim Applewhite of McCall Gibson Swedlund Barfoot PLLC; Rebecca Reyna of Greater 
Northside Management District; Luis Garcia of METRO; and Lisa Duffy with the City of Houston (the 
“City”).  There were no members of the public that were present, telephonically, at the meeting.  

Whereupon, the meeting was called to order. A copy of the notice of the meeting is attached 
hereto as Exhibit “A”. 

DETERMINE QUORUM; CALL TO ORDER 

Director Reyes noted that a quorum was present and called the meeting to order. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
 No comments were given. 
 
MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 

 The Board considered approval of the minutes of March 9, 2020.  Following discussion, upon a 
motion made by Director Cavazos and seconded by Director Zamarripa, the Board voted unanimously 
to approve the minutes of March 9, 2020. 

ADOPT BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2021.   

The Board recognized Mr. De Leon who reviewed the draft budget for the fiscal year ending 
June 30, 2021.  He noted that the draft budget from the City of Houston (the “City”) does not include 
the proposed income from the additional 1,100 acres that was recently annexed by the Authority for 
which the Authority will begin receiving income next summer.  He provided the City with an 
estimated amount insert in the City’s budget as a placeholder for anticipated income from the annexed 
property.   



 

 2 

The Board discussed two new projects regarding a pocket park at Fulton and English Street 
with a proposed conveyance of property by METRO.  The other project relates to bike lane 
improvements that will require amending the major thoroughfare plan.  Discussion ensued regarding 
background, project components and proposed costs for budget purposes.  After discussion, Director 
Cavazos moved that the Board approve the budget, subject to final review, and authorize submittal of 
same to the City.  Director Cantu seconded the motion passed by a majority vote with Directors 
Cavazos, Cantu, Burke and Reyes voting yes and Directors Castillo and Zamarripa voting no. A copy 
of the budget presented at the meeting is attached hereto as Exhibit “B”. 

ENGAGE AUDITOR TO PREPARE THE AUDIT FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 
30, 2021 

 Mr. Lord reviewed an engagement letter from the Authority’s auditors, McCall Gibson 
Swedlund Barfoot PLLC, a copy is attached as Exhibit “C.”  He stated that the letter authorizes 
preparation of an audit for fiscal years ending 2020 and 2021 for a cost of $8,000 to $9,000 for both 
years.  He noted the auditor conveyed that they do not anticipate an increase.  Following discussion, 
upon a motion made by Director Cantu and seconded by Director Burke, the Board voted unanimously 
to approve engagement letter submitted by McCall Gibson Swedlund Barfoot PLLC. 

RECOMMENDATION FROM THE SELECTION COMMITTEE RELATED TO 
RETAINING PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES 

Director Cavazos reported that the Selection Committee received and reviewed presentations 
from Walter P. Moore and Gauge Engineering. Following the presentations and assessing 
qualifications of each firm, the Selection Committee recommends that the Authority engaging Gauge 
Engineering to provide engineering services related to infrastructure analyses needed to identify and 
prioritize infrastructure projects. Discussion ensued.  Following discussion, upon a motion made by 
Director Cavazos and seconded by Director Cantu to accept the Selection Committee’s 
recommendation to engage Gauge Engineering to perform engineering services and to authorize Mr. 
DeLeon and Bracewell to negotiate an Agreement for Engineering Services with Gauge Engineering, 
which passed may a majority vote with Directors Cavazos, Cantu, Reyes, Burke and Zamarripa 
voting yes and Director Castillo voting no.  

PRESENTATIONS, REPORTS, OR UPDATES FROM DIRECTORS, CONSULTANTS, CITY 
OF HOUSTON STAFF, REGARDING DEVELOPMENT IN THE AUTHORITY AND ZONE 
AND IMPLEMENTATION OF PROJECT PLAN AND REINVESTMENT ZONE FINANCING 
PLAN 

No items were presented. 

CONVENE IN EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 551.087, CHAPTER 551, 
TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE 

The Board did not convene in Executive Session. 

 

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 



 

 3 

There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned.  

              
      Secretary  
 

#6199675 



 

 1 

MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 
OF 

REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER TWENTY-ONE, CITY OF HOUSTON 
 

June 8, 2020 

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Reinvestment Zone Number Twenty-One, City of 
Houston (the “Zone”) convened in regular session, open to the public, on the 8th day of June 2020, and 
the roll was called of the duly constituted officers and members of the Board, to-wit: 

CQ   Edward Reyes  Chair/Assistant Secretary  
CQ   Lloyd Burke   Vice Chair/Investment Officer  
CQ   Sylvia Cavazos Secretary  
CQ   Richard Cantu  Assistant Secretary 
CQ   Fernando Zamarripa Assistant Secretary 
   Mario Castillo  Director 
 
All member of the Board of Directors were present, thus constituting a quorum. 

Also present were: Clark Lord and Brenda Presser of Bracewell LLP; Ralph DeLeon of 
Tifworks; Tim Applewhite of McCall Gibson Swedlund Barfoot PLLC; Rebecca Reyna of Greater 
Northside Management District; Luis Garcia of METRO; and Lisa Duffy with the City of Houston (the 
“City”).  There were no members of the public that were present, telephonically, at the meeting.  

Whereupon, the meeting was called to order. A copy of the notice of the meeting is attached 
hereto as Exhibit “A”. 

DETERMINE QUORUM; CALL TO ORDER 

Director Reyes noted that a quorum was present and called the meeting to order. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
 No comments were given. 
 
MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 

 The Board considered approval of the minutes of March 9, 2020.  Following discussion, upon a 
motion made by Director Cavazos and seconded by Director Zamarripa, the Board voted unanimously 
to approve the minutes of March 9, 2020. 

ADOPT BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2021.   

The Board recognized Mr. De Leon who reviewed the draft budget for the fiscal year ending 
June 30, 2021.  He noted that the draft budget from the City of Houston (the “City”) does not include 
the proposed income from the additional 1,100 acres that was recently annexed by the Authority for 
which the Authority will begin receiving income next summer.  He provided the City with an 
estimated amount insert in the City’s budget as a placeholder for anticipated income from the annexed 
property.   



 

 2 

The Board discussed two new projects regarding a pocket park at Fulton and English Street 
with a proposed conveyance of property by METRO.  The other project relates to bike lane 
improvements that will require amending the major thoroughfare plan.  Discussion ensued regarding 
background, project components and proposed costs for budget purposes.  After discussion, Director 
Cavazos moved that the Board approve the budget, subject to final review, and authorize submittal of 
same to the City.  Director Cantu seconded the motion passed by a majority vote with Directors 
Cavazos, Cantu, Burke and Reyes voting yes and Directors Castillo and Zamarripa voting no. A copy 
of the budget presented at the meeting is attached hereto as Exhibit “B”. 

ENGAGE AUDITOR TO PREPARE THE AUDIT FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 
30, 2021 

 Mr. Lord reviewed an engagement letter from the Authority’s auditors, McCall Gibson 
Swedlund Barfoot PLLC, a copy is attached as Exhibit “C.”  He stated that the letter authorizes 
preparation of an audit for fiscal years ending 2020 and 2021 for a cost of $8,000 to $9,000 for both 
years.  He noted the auditor conveyed that they do not anticipate an increase.  Following discussion, 
upon a motion made by Director Cantu and seconded by Director Burke, the Board voted unanimously 
to approve engagement letter submitted by McCall Gibson Swedlund Barfoot PLLC. 

RECOMMENDATION FROM THE SELECTION COMMITTEE RELATED TO 
RETAINING PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES 

Director Cavazos reported that the Selection Committee received and reviewed presentations 
from Walter P. Moore and Gauge Engineering.  Following the presentations and assessing 
qualifications of each firm, the Selection Committee recommends that the Authority engaging Gauge 
Engineering to provide engineering services related to infrastructure analyses needed to identify and 
prioritize infrastructure projects. Discussion ensued.  Following discussion, upon a motion made by 
Director Cavazos and seconded by Director Cantu to accept the Selection Committee’s 
recommendation to engage Gauge Engineering to perform engineering services and to authorize Mr. 
DeLeon and Bracewell to negotiate an Agreement for Engineering Services with Gauge Engineering, 
which passed may a majority vote with Directors Cavazos, Cantu, Reyes, Burke and Zamarripa 
voting yes and Director Castillo voting no.  

PRESENTATIONS, REPORTS, OR UPDATES FROM DIRECTORS, CONSULTANTS, CITY 
OF HOUSTON STAFF, REGARDING DEVELOPMENT IN THE AUTHORITY AND ZONE 
AND IMPLEMENTATION OF PROJECT PLAN AND REINVESTMENT ZONE FINANCING 
PLAN 

No items were presented. 

CONVENE IN EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 551.087, CHAPTER 551, 
TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE 

The Board did not convene in Executive Session. 

 

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 



 

 3 

There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned.  

              
      Secretary  
 

#6183899 



Hardy Near Northside Redevelopment Authority 

Monthly Financial Report Summary 

June Board Meeting 

Monday, June 8, 2020 

At the beginning of January, the Hardy Near Northside Redevelopment Authority (TIRZ 

#21)  beginning Operating  Fund  Balance was  $784,320.    TIRZ  #21  received  a  total  of 

$66,798, mainly from banking interest and a deposit for the payment of the Construction 

Retainage balance.   During  the period,  TIRZ  #21 processed $90,190  in disbursements 

during  the  period.    71%  of  the  disbursements  related  to  disbursements  to  NBG 

Constructors  Inc.  for the Hernandez Tunnel Developer Reimbursement  ($63,958).   The 

ending balance as of month end May 31, 2020 was $760,928.   

The invoices pending approval total $15,585.  See attached “Unpaid Bills Detail” Report 

on page 3.  A transfer of $‐0‐ is required from the Pool Account to the Operating account 

to cover outstanding invoices.   



Hardy Near Northside Redevelopment Authority
General Operating Fund

As of May 31, 2020

BEGINNING BALANCE 784,319.69$  

REVENUE
BBVA Compass 8.19 Monthly Interest
BBVA Compass 8.69 Monthly Interest
BBVA Compass 6.40 Monthly Interest
BBVA Compass 6.84 Monthly Interest
BBVA Compass 6.01 Monthly Interest
City of Houston 63,957.77        Construction Deposit
TexPool Investment 930.35             Monthly Interest
TexPool Investment 870.62             Monthly Interest
TexPool Investment 587.74             Monthly Interest
TexPool Investment 258.25             Monthly Interest
TexPool Investment 157.43             Monthly Interest

Total Revenue 66,798.29 

DISBURSEMENTS

1063 Texas Municipal League 928.06             Insurance
1060 NBG Constructors Inc. 63,957.77        Retainage
EFT BBVA Compass 14.00 Bank Service Charge
1061 Bracewell LLP 3,514.76 Legal Services
1062 Equitax Inc 1,089.90 Tax Consultants
1065 TIFWorks LLC 6,750.00 Admin Consultants
1064 The Morton Accounting Services 3,309.99 CPA Services
1068 Bracewell LLP 6,751.87 Legal Services
EFT BBVA Compass 16.25 Bank Service Charge
EFT BBVA Compass 14.00 Bank Service Charge
1067 TIFWorks LLC 3,375.00 Admin Consultants
EFT BBVA Compass 14.00 Bank Service Charge
1069 Houston Business Journal 440.00 Bid Advertisement
EFT BBVA Compass 14.40 Bank Service Charge

Total Disbursements 90,190.00 

ENDING BALANCE 760,927.98$  
- 

May 31, 2020

Balance
LOCATION OF ASSETS

BBVA Compass 70,220.62$  
TexPool Investment 690,707.36 

Total Account Balance 760,927.98$  

General Operating Fund

No assurance is provided on these financial statements Page 2



Type Date Num Memo Due Date Open Balance

Bracewell LLP
Bill 03/31/2020 21877353 General Counsel through March 31, 2020 04/10/2020 1,099.60
Bill 03/31/2020 21877352 Meeting services through March 31, 2020 04/10/2020 4,050.00
Bill 04/30/2020 21878576 Meeting services through April 30, 2020 05/10/2020 778.50
Bill 05/31/2020 21881076 Meeting services through May 31, 2020 06/10/2020 276.30

Total Bracewell LLP 6,204.40

McCall Gibson Swedlund Barfoot PLLC
Bill 05/01/2020 2019 Audit Final FYE 06.30.19 Audit - Final billing 05/11/2020 2,000.00

Total McCall Gibson Swedlund Barfoot PLLC 2,000.00

The Morton Accounting Services
Bill 05/31/2020 2053 CPA Services and Invest. Officer (Jan - May) & Transition Cost 06/10/2020 5,093.54

Total The Morton Accounting Services 5,093.54

TIFWorks, LLC
Bill 06/02/2020 15 General Consulting Services January through  June 2, 2020 06/12/2020 2,287.50

Total TIFWorks, LLC 2,287.50

TOTAL 15,585.44

11:02 AM HARDY/NEAR NORTHSIDE TIRZ # 21
06/02/20 Unpaid Bills Detail

As of June 2, 2020

No assurance is provided on these financial statements Page 3



HARDY/NEAR NORTHSIDE TIRZ # 21

BUDGET TO ACTUAL
11 Months Ended May 31, 2020

May 31, 2020
Actual

May 31, 2020
Budget

Variance % of Budget

Revenue
Grant Income - Construction 235,206.73$        231,639.00$        3,567.73$            101.54 %      
Interest Income checking 327.34 500.00 (172.66) 65.47 %        
Interest on TexPool 9,664.18              0.00 9,664.18              
Interest on TIRZ revenue 0.00 170.00 (170.00) 0.00 %          
Tax increments 0.00 438,217.00          (438,217.00)         0.00 %          

Total Revenue 245,198.25          670,526.00          (425,327.75)         36.57 %        

Capital Improvement Plan
T-2102 Hernandez Tunnel Mural 0.00 15,000.00            (15,000.00)           0.00 %          
T-2101 Near Northside Hernandez 0.00 231,639.00          (231,639.00)         0.00 %          

Total Capital Improvement Plan 0.00 246,639.00          (246,639.00)         0.00 %          

Gross Profit 245,198.25          423,887.00          (178,688.75)         57.85 %        

Operating Expenses
Developer Reimbursement 649,005.73          391,967.00          257,038.73          165.58 %      
Program and Project Consultants 0.00 0.00 0.00 
   Planning Consultants 27,950.00            25,000.00            2,950.00              111.80 %      
   Engineering Consultation 0.00 10,000.00            (10,000.00)           0.00 %          
   General Counsel Representation 4,499.85              20,000.00            (15,500.15)           22.50 %        
TIRZ Administration  Overhead 0.00 0.00 0.00 
   Tax Consultants 1,868.40              2,000.00              (131.60) 93.42 %        
   Accounting Services 18,027.53            10,000.00            8,027.53              180.28 %      
   Administrative Services 15,616.33            8,000.00              7,616.33              195.20 %      
   Audit Services 8,500.00              10,000.00            (1,500.00)             85.00 %        
   Bank Charges 161.64 262.60 (100.96) 61.55 %        
   Insurance - Liability 928.06 1,000.00              (71.94) 92.81 %        
   Office Expense 440.00 0.00 440.00 

Total Operating Expenses 726,997.54          478,229.60          248,767.94          152.02 %      

Net Income (Loss) (481,799.29)         (54,342.60)           (427,456.69)         886.60 %      

Page 4No assurance is provided on these financial statements



HARDY/NEAR NORTHSIDE TIRZ # 21

BALANCE SHEET
May 31, 2020 and 2019

Assets

2020 2019 Variance %
Current Assets

BBVA Compass 70,220.62$          412,064.74$        (341,844.12)$       (82.96)%       
Tex Pool AC  7932300001 690,707.36          679,712.85          10,994.51            1.62 %          
Accounts Receivable 0.00 70,408.12            (70,408.12)           (100.00)%     

Total Current Assets 760,927.98          1,162,185.71       (401,257.73)         (34.53)%       

Total Assets 760,927.98$        1,162,185.71$     (401,257.73)$       (34.53)%       

Liabilities and Fund Balance

2020 2019 Variance %
Current Liabilities

*Accounts Payable 13,297.94$          342,224.44$        (328,926.50)$       (96.11)%       
Accounts Payable- CRV HARDY 0.00 70,408.12            (70,408.12)           (100.00)%     

Total Current Liabilities 13,297.94            412,632.56          (399,334.62)         (96.78)%       

Fund Balance
*Fund Balance 1,229,429.33       1,620,067.27       (390,637.94)         (24.11)%       
Net Income (481,799.29)         (870,514.12)         388,714.83          (44.65)%       

Total Fund Balance 747,630.04          749,553.15          (1,923.11)             (0.26)%         

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 760,927.98$        1,162,185.71$     (401,257.73)$       (34.53)%       

Page 5No assurance is provided on these financial statements



Type Date Num Adj Name Memo Amount

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

Grant Income - Construction
Deposit 11/08/2019 City of Houston, TX Deposit 171,248.96
Deposit 01/08/2020 City of Houston, TX Deposit 63,957.77

Total Grant Income - Construction 235,206.73

Interest Income checking
Deposit 07/01/2019 Interest 24.14
Deposit 08/01/2019 Interest 72.20
Deposit 09/03/2019 Interest 93.69
Deposit 10/01/2019 Interest 48.01
Deposit 11/01/2019 Interest 41.41
Deposit 12/01/2019 Interest 11.76
Deposit 01/01/2020 Interest 8.19
Deposit 02/01/2020 Interest 8.69
Deposit 03/01/2020 Interest 6.40
Deposit 04/01/2020 Interest 6.84
Deposit 05/01/2020 Interest 6.01

Total Interest Income checking 327.34

Interest on TexPool
Deposit 07/31/2019 Interest 1,381.06
Deposit 08/31/2019 Interest 1,258.54
Deposit 09/30/2019 Interest 1,215.74
Deposit 10/31/2019 Interest 1,111.91
Deposit 11/30/2019 Interest 945.83
Deposit 12/31/2019 Interest 946.71
Deposit 01/31/2020 Interest 930.35
Deposit 02/29/2020 Interest 870.62
Deposit 03/31/2020 Interest 587.74
Deposit 04/30/2020 Interest 258.25
Deposit 05/31/2020 Interest 157.43

Total Interest on TexPool 9,664.18

Total Income 245,198.25

Gross Profit 245,198.25

Expense
Developer Reimbursement

Bill 09/23/2019 CRV Hardy Yards, L. P. Reimbursement to CRV Hardy Yards 413,799.00
Bill 11/11/2019 3 NBG Constructors, Inc. Hernandez Tunnel #3 171,248.96
Bill 12/31/2019 4 - Final ... NBG Constructors, Inc. Hernandez Tunnel #4 - Final Retainage 63,957.77

Total Developer Reimbursement 649,005.73

Program and Project Consultants
Planning Consultants

Bill 09/23/2019 11 TIFWorks, LLC General Consulting Services June through September 2019 6,975.00
Bill 11/06/2019 12 TIFWorks, LLC General Consulting Services September through October 2019 10,850.00
Bill 01/07/2020 13 TIFWorks, LLC General Consulting Services September through January 6, 2... 6,750.00
Bill 03/31/2020 14 TIFWorks, LLC General Consulting Services January through  March 31, 2020 3,375.00

Total Planning Consultants 27,950.00

Legal Consultants
General Counsel Representation

Bill 10/03/2019 21862276 Bracewell LLP General Counsel services through September 30, 2019 873.75
Bill 11/05/2019 21866005 Bracewell LLP General Counsel services through October 31, 2019 400.00
Bill 12/04/2019 21868572 Bracewell LLP General Counsel services through November 30, 2019 800.00
Bill 01/31/2020 21873314 Bracewell LLP General Counsel services through January 31, 2020 1,000.00
Bill 02/29/2020 21874752 Bracewell LLP General Counsel services through  February 29, 2020 326.50
Bill 03/31/2020 21877353 Bracewell LLP General Counsel through March 31, 2020 1,099.60

Total General Counsel Representation 4,499.85

Total Legal Consultants 4,499.85

Total Program and Project Consultants 32,449.85

TIRZ Administration  Overhead
Tax Consultants

Bill 07/01/2019 54180 Equi-Tax Inc. Monthly Consultant Services fee per Contract 155.70
Bill 08/01/2019 54291 Equi-Tax Inc. Monthly Consultant Services fee per Contract 155.70
Bill 09/01/2019 54400 Equi-Tax Inc. Monthly Consultant Services fee per Contract 155.70
Bill 10/01/2019 54504 Equi-Tax Inc. Monthly Consultant Services fee per Contract 155.70
Bill 11/01/2019 54618 Equi-Tax Inc. Monthly Consultant Services fee per Contract 155.70
Bill 12/02/2019 54781 Equi-Tax Inc. Monthly Consultant Services fee per Contract 155.70

11:06 AM HARDY/NEAR NORTHSIDE TIRZ # 21
06/02/20 Profit & Loss Detail
Accrual Basis July 2019 through May 2020

No assurance is provided on these financial statements Page 6



Type Date Num Adj Name Memo Amount

Bill 01/01/2020 54804 Equi-Tax Inc. January - June 2020 Consultant Services fee per Contract 934.20

Total Tax Consultants 1,868.40

Accounting Services
Bill 09/18/2019 13030-00... Bentley, Bratcher & Associate... Attendance of June 2019 Board meeting, Prepare for Septem... 7,561.00
Bill 11/06/2019 13030-00... Bentley, Bratcher & Associate... Attendance of September 2019 Board meeting, Post Board m... 2,063.00
Bill 01/07/2020 1988 The Morton Accounting Services CPA Services and Invest. Officer (Nov/Dec) & Transition Cost 3,309.99
Bill 05/31/2020 2053 The Morton Accounting Services CPA Services and Invest. Officer (Jan - May) & Transition Cost 5,093.54

Total Accounting Services 18,027.53

Administrative Services
Bill 09/09/2019 21859641 Bracewell LLP Meeting services through August 31, 2019 213.00
Bill 10/03/2019 21862275 Bracewell LLP Meeting services through September 30, 2019 2,158.40
Bill 12/04/2019 21868571 Bracewell LLP Meeting services through November 30, 2019 2,673.00
Bill 12/31/2019 21870889 Bracewell LLP Meeting services through December 30, 2019 41.76
Bill 01/31/2020 21873313 Bracewell LLP Meeting services through January 31, 2020 3,712.50
Bill 02/29/2020 21874751 Bracewell LLP Meeting services through  February 29, 2020 1,712.87
Bill 03/31/2020 21877352 Bracewell LLP Meeting services through March 31, 2020 4,050.00
Bill 04/30/2020 21878576 Bracewell LLP Meeting services through April 30, 2020 778.50
Bill 05/31/2020 21881076 Bracewell LLP Meeting services through May 31, 2020 276.30

Total Administrative Services 15,616.33

Audit Services
Bill 09/12/2019 McCall Gibson Swedlund Barf... FYE 06.30.19 Audit - interim billing 6,500.00
Bill 05/01/2020 2019 Aud... McCall Gibson Swedlund Barf... FYE 06.30.19 Audit - Final billing 2,000.00

Total Audit Services 8,500.00

Bank Charges
Check 07/15/2019 Service Charge 15.19
Check 08/15/2019 Service Charge 14.80
Check 09/16/2019 Service Charge 14.00
Check 10/15/2019 Service Charge 14.60
Check 11/15/2019 Service Charge 14.60
Check 12/15/2019 Service Charge 15.80
Check 01/15/2020 Service Charge 14.00
Check 02/15/2020 Service Charge 16.25
Check 03/15/2020 Service Charge 14.00
Check 04/15/2020 Service Charge 14.00
Check 05/15/2020 Service Charge 14.40

Total Bank Charges 161.64

Insurance - Liability
Bill 12/01/2019 6754-19/20 Texas Municipal League Interg... 2019-2020 FY Insurance 928.06

Total Insurance - Liability 928.06

Office Expense
Check 04/22/2020 1069 Houston Business Journal Engineering bids 440.00

Total Office Expense 440.00

Total TIRZ Administration  Overhead 45,541.96

Total Expense 726,997.54

Net Ordinary Income -481,799.29

Net Income -481,799.29

11:06 AM HARDY/NEAR NORTHSIDE TIRZ # 21
06/02/20 Profit & Loss Detail
Accrual Basis July 2019 through May 2020

No assurance is provided on these financial statements Page 7



Type Date Num Memo Open Balance

Bracewell LLP
Bill 06/30/2020 21883398 Meeting services through June 30, 2020 4,425.00
Bill 06/30/2020 21883434 General Counsel services through June 30, 2020 2,000.00

Total Bracewell LLP 6,425.00

Equi-Tax Inc.
Bill 07/01/2020 55573 July - June 2021 Consultant Services fee per Contract 1,868.40

Total Equi-Tax Inc. 1,868.40

The Morton Accounting Services
Bill 06/30/2020 2072 CPA Services and Invest. Officer June 2020 914.22

Total The Morton Accounting Services 914.22

TOTAL 9,207.62

10:06 PM HARDY/NEAR NORTHSIDE TIRZ # 21

07/06/20 Unpaid Bills Detail
As of July 6, 2020

Page 1



 

Clark Stockton Lord 
Senior Counsel 
 

T: 713.221.1202            F: 800-404-3970 
711 Louisiana Street, Suite 2300, Houston, Texas 77002-2770 
Clark.Lord@bracewell.com            bracewell.com 

 

A U S T I N   C O N N E C T I C U T   D A L L A S   D U B A I   H O U S T O N   L O N D O N   N E W  Y O R K   S A N  A N T O N I O   S E A T T L E   W A S H I N G T O N ,  D C  

April 8, 2020 

 

VIA E-MAIL MELISSACPA@THEMORTONASSOCIATES.COM  

Ms. Melissa Morton 
The Morton Accounting Services 
1125 Cypress Station Drive 
Building H-4 
Houston, TX 77090 

 

 
Re:   Hardy/Near Northside Redevelopment Authority/TIRZ 21  

       General Counsel – 0037619.01 
Meeting Services – 0037619.03 

  

Dear Ms. Morton: 

Enclosed are our firm invoices for the above-captioned matters for services rendered through March 31, 
2020.   Please remit payment at your earliest convenience. 

Very truly yours, 

 
 
 
Clark Stockton Lord 
Partner 

Enclosure 



Hardy/Near Northside Redevelopment Authority
Melissa Morton, Bookkeeper
1125 Cypress Station Drive
Building H-4
Houston, TX 77090

April 03, 2020
Invoice Number 21877353

BA: 04674 Clark Stockton Lord

Our Matter #: 0037619.000001 For Services Through March 31, 2020
General Counsel

Bracewell LLP    711 Louisiana Street, Suite 2300  Houston, Texas 77002       bracewell.com

AUSTIN               CONNECTICUT               DALLAS               DUBAI              HOUSTON              LONDON              NEW YORK              SAN ANTONIO              SEATTLE             WASHINGTON, DC

Date Description Timekeeper Hours Rate Amount

03/03/20 Review and analyze potential second TPIA disclosure 
and law regarding production of documents.

Shelby Harden 0.30  428.00  128.40

03/04/20 Review and analyze potential second TPIA disclosure 
and law regarding production of documents.

Shelby Harden 0.10  428.00  42.80

03/06/20 Review and analyze potential second TPIA disclosure 
and law regarding production of documents.

Shelby Harden 0.20  428.00  85.60

03/09/20 Prepare for and attend Board meeting Clark Stockton Lord 2.00  400.00  800.00

03/12/20 Review and analyze potential second TPIA disclosure 
and law regarding production of documents.

Shelby Harden 0.10  428.00  42.80

Total Fees $ 1,099.60 

Summary of Fees

Timekeeper Title Hours Rate Amount

Shelby Harden Associate 0.70  428.00  299.60
Clark Stockton Lord Partner 2.00  400.00  800.00

Total Summary of Fees
2.70 $ 1,099.60

Total Fees, Expenses and Charges $ 1,099.60



REMITTANCE PAGE

Client: Hardy/Near Northside Redevelopment Authority April 03, 2020
Matter: General Counsel Invoice Number. 21877353

Matter No:  0037619.000001

Bracewell LLP    711 Louisiana Street, Suite 2300  Houston, Texas 77002       bracewell.com

AUSTIN               CONNECTICUT               DALLAS               DUBAI              HOUSTON              LONDON              NEW YORK              SAN ANTONIO              SEATTLE             WASHINGTON, DC

Total Fees $ 1,099.60 

Total Expenses $ 0.00

Total Fees, Expenses and Charges $ 1,099.60

Total Current Billing for this Matter $ 1,099.60

Balance Forward $ 1,326.50

Please Remit Total Balance Due $ 2,426.10

PLEASE RETURN THIS REMITTANCE PAGE WITH YOUR PAYMENT

Wire Transfer Information

Wire to:        Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.   420 Montgomery   San Francisco, CA 94104

Name on Account: Bracewell LLP
Bank Account No: 5436952757
ABA Number (For Wire Transfers Only) : 121000248;  (For ACH'S Only): 111900659
For International Wires Also Include Swift Code (for both US and Foreign Funds): WFBIUS6S
Please include the invoice number as a reference when sending the wire. 21877353

Check Information
Bracewell LLP
P.O. Box 207486
Dallas, TX 75320-7486
Tax ID 74-1024827

Courier Information
Wells Fargo Lockbox Services
P.O. Box 207486
2975 Regent Blvd
Irving, TX 75063

Credit Card Information: https://www.e-billexpress.com/ebpp/Bracewell/



Hardy/Near Northside Redevelopment Authority
Melissa Morton, Bookkeeper
1125 Cypress Station Drive
Building H-4
Houston, TX 77090

April 03, 2020
Invoice Number 21877352

BA: 04674 Clark Stockton Lord

Our Matter #: 0037619.000003 For Services Through March 31, 2020
Meeting Services

Bracewell LLP    711 Louisiana Street, Suite 2300  Houston, Texas 77002       bracewell.com

AUSTIN               CONNECTICUT               DALLAS               DUBAI              HOUSTON              LONDON              NEW YORK              SAN ANTONIO              SEATTLE             WASHINGTON, DC

Date Description Timekeeper Hours Rate Amount

03/02/20 Draft minutes and agenda.  Coordinate with Ralph 
DeLeon regarding meeting and agenda items.

Brenda Presser 3.50  315.00  1,102.50

03/03/20 Revise and finalize agenda and follow up on agenda 
item for inclusion.

Brenda Presser 0.50  315.00  157.50

03/06/20 Prepare for meeting. Brenda Presser 1.00  315.00  315.00

03/09/20 Travel to, from and attend regular meeting.  Post 
meeting follow up, distribution and filing of documents.

Brenda Presser 5.00  315.00  1,575.00

03/10/20 Finalize follow up items for review with working group. Tiffany M. Ehmke 0.25  297.00  74.25

03/12/20 Review requests from houston chronicle regarding 
additional information and/or reformatting of check 
registrars and/ general ledger; Conference call with 
attorney and houston chronicle requested regarding the 
same.

Tiffany M. Ehmke 0.50  297.00  148.50

03/13/20 Review of outstanding items from City of Houston; 
Contact City of Houston regarding request for original 
publication affidavits and paper clippings for recent 
Project Plan; Request for certification sheets for 
Ordinance approving project plan; Meeting with 
attorney reviewing ongoing projects and related follow 
up matters; Updated database regarding the same.

Tiffany M. Ehmke 0.50  297.00  148.50

03/13/20 Receive and review correspondence from Ralph DeLeon 
regarding requests for qualifications and posting notice.

Brenda Presser 0.25  315.00  78.75

03/19/20 Receive and review District correspondence. Brenda Presser 0.25  315.00  78.75



Page 2

Client: Hardy/Near Northside Redevelopment Authority April 03, 2020
Invoice  Number: 21877352

Bracewell LLP    711 Louisiana Street, Suite 2300  Houston, Texas 77002       bracewell.com

AUSTIN               CONNECTICUT               DALLAS               DUBAI              HOUSTON              LONDON              NEW YORK              SAN ANTONIO              SEATTLE             WASHINGTON, DC

Date Description Timekeeper Hours Rate Amount

03/20/20 Analyze and review methods of complying with 
Governor Declaration for conference and/ or video 
conference options for future meetings; Follow up with 
IT regarding document upload to web video 
conferencing and additional options;

Tiffany M. Ehmke 0.25  297.00  74.25

03/26/20 Review of Texas Department of Information Resources; 
Coordinate with IT regarding platform for 
teleconference, conference call and related options for 
open meetings.

Tiffany M. Ehmke 0.25  297.00  74.25

03/30/20 Coordinate with IT department for firm platform for 
meetings with governmental entities; Training and 
practice meeting on platform; Coordinate with team 
regarding new standards for meetings via tele-
communications.

Tiffany M. Ehmke 0.50  297.00  148.50

03/31/20 Attention to conference call with team regarding link for 
District documents and notification to the public; 
Coordinate with IT regarding finalization of platform for 
public meetings via teleconference; Draft language 
regarding notification to the public regarding meeting 
documents and transmit to attorney for review.

Tiffany M. Ehmke 0.25  297.00  74.25

Total Fees $ 4,050.00 



Page 3

Client: Hardy/Near Northside Redevelopment Authority April 03, 2020
Invoice  Number: 21877352

Bracewell LLP    711 Louisiana Street, Suite 2300  Houston, Texas 77002       bracewell.com

AUSTIN               CONNECTICUT               DALLAS               DUBAI              HOUSTON              LONDON              NEW YORK              SAN ANTONIO              SEATTLE             WASHINGTON, DC

Summary of Fees

Timekeeper Title Hours Rate Amount

Tiffany M. Ehmke Paralegal 2.50  297.00  742.50
Brenda Presser Paralegal 10.50  315.00  3,307.50

Total Summary of Fees
13.00 $ 4,050.00

Total Fees, Expenses and Charges $ 4,050.00



REMITTANCE PAGE

Client: Hardy/Near Northside Redevelopment Authority April 03, 2020
Matter: Meeting Services Invoice Number. 21877352

Matter No:  0037619.000003

Bracewell LLP    711 Louisiana Street, Suite 2300  Houston, Texas 77002       bracewell.com

AUSTIN               CONNECTICUT               DALLAS               DUBAI              HOUSTON              LONDON              NEW YORK              SAN ANTONIO              SEATTLE             WASHINGTON, DC

Total Fees $ 4,050.00 

Total Expenses $ 0.00

Total Fees, Expenses and Charges $ 4,050.00

Total Current Billing for this Matter $ 4,050.00

Balance Forward $ 5,425.37

Please Remit Total Balance Due $ 9,475.37

PLEASE RETURN THIS REMITTANCE PAGE WITH YOUR PAYMENT

Wire Transfer Information

Wire to:        Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.   420 Montgomery   San Francisco, CA 94104

Name on Account: Bracewell LLP
Bank Account No: 5436952757
ABA Number (For Wire Transfers Only) : 121000248;  (For ACH'S Only): 111900659
For International Wires Also Include Swift Code (for both US and Foreign Funds): WFBIUS6S
Please include the invoice number as a reference when sending the wire. 21877352

Check Information
Bracewell LLP
P.O. Box 207486
Dallas, TX 75320-7486
Tax ID 74-1024827

Courier Information
Wells Fargo Lockbox Services
P.O. Box 207486
2975 Regent Blvd
Irving, TX 75063

Credit Card Information: https://www.e-billexpress.com/ebpp/Bracewell/



 

Clark Stockton Lord 
Senior Counsel 
 

T: 713.221.1202            F: 800-404-3970 
711 Louisiana Street, Suite 2300, Houston, Texas 77002-2770 
Clark.Lord@bracewell.com            bracewell.com 

 

A U S T I N   C O N N E C T I C U T   D A L L A S   D U B A I   H O U S T O N   L O N D O N   N E W  Y O R K   S A N  A N T O N I O   S E A T T L E   W A S H I N G T O N ,  D C  

May 6, 2020 

 

VIA E-MAIL MELISSACPA@THEMORTONASSOCIATES.COM  

Ms. Melissa Morton 
The Morton Accounting Services 
1125 Cypress Station Drive 
Building H-4 
Houston, TX 77090 

 

 
Re:   Hardy/Near Northside Redevelopment Authority/TIRZ 21  

       Meeting Services – 0037619.03 
  

Dear Ms. Morton: 

Enclosed is our firm invoice for the above-captioned matter for services rendered through April 30, 
2020.   Please remit payment at your earliest convenience. 

Very truly yours, 

 
 
 
Clark Stockton Lord 
Partner 

Enclosure 



Hardy/Near Northside Redevelopment Authority
Melissa Morton, Bookkeeper
1125 Cypress Station Drive
Building H-4
Houston, TX 77090

May 04, 2020
Invoice Number 21878576

BA: 04674 Clark Stockton Lord

Our Matter #: 0037619.000003 For Services Through April 30, 2020
Meeting Services

Bracewell LLP    711 Louisiana Street, Suite 2300  Houston, Texas 77002       bracewell.com

AUSTIN               CONNECTICUT               DALLAS               DUBAI              HOUSTON              LONDON              NEW YORK              SAN ANTONIO              SEATTLE             WASHINGTON, DC

Date Description Timekeeper Hours Rate Amount

04/01/20 Receive and respond to District correspondence. Brenda Presser 0.25  315.00  78.75

04/03/20 Draft conference call protocol form and transmit to 
attorney for review and comment; DocuSign process for 
execution of documents via electronic device.

Tiffany M. Ehmke 0.25  297.00  74.25

04/03/20 Receive and file engineering proposals.  Discussion with 
administrator regarding next meeting and agenda items.  
Review District calendar.

Brenda Presser 1.00  315.00  315.00

04/16/20 Contact City regarding certified ordinance for recent 
approval of project plan and related publisher's 
affidavits.

Tiffany M. Ehmke 0.25  297.00  74.25

04/16/20 Receive and respond to District correspondence.  Follow 
up on invoices and affidavits from Houston Business 
Journal.

Brenda Presser 0.50  315.00  157.50

04/22/20 Receive and respond to District correspondence. Brenda Presser 0.25  315.00  78.75

Total Fees $ 778.50 



Page 2

Client: Hardy/Near Northside Redevelopment Authority May 04, 2020
Invoice  Number: 21878576

Bracewell LLP    711 Louisiana Street, Suite 2300  Houston, Texas 77002       bracewell.com

AUSTIN               CONNECTICUT               DALLAS               DUBAI              HOUSTON              LONDON              NEW YORK              SAN ANTONIO              SEATTLE             WASHINGTON, DC

Summary of Fees

Timekeeper Title Hours Rate Amount

Tiffany M. Ehmke Paralegal 0.50  297.00  148.50
Brenda Presser Paralegal 2.00  315.00  630.00

Total Summary of Fees
2.50 $ 778.50

Total Fees, Expenses and Charges $ 778.50



REMITTANCE PAGE

Client: Hardy/Near Northside Redevelopment Authority May 04, 2020
Matter: Meeting Services Invoice Number. 21878576

Matter No:  0037619.000003

Bracewell LLP    711 Louisiana Street, Suite 2300  Houston, Texas 77002       bracewell.com

AUSTIN               CONNECTICUT               DALLAS               DUBAI              HOUSTON              LONDON              NEW YORK              SAN ANTONIO              SEATTLE             WASHINGTON, DC

Total Fees $ 778.50 

Total Expenses $ 0.00

Total Fees, Expenses and Charges $ 778.50

Total Current Billing for this Matter $ 778.50

Balance Forward $ 4,050.00

Please Remit Total Balance Due $ 4,828.50

PLEASE RETURN THIS REMITTANCE PAGE WITH YOUR PAYMENT

Wire Transfer Information

Wire to:        Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.   420 Montgomery   San Francisco, CA 94104

Name on Account: Bracewell LLP
Bank Account No: 5436952757
ABA Number (For Wire Transfers Only) : 121000248;  (For ACH'S Only): 111900659
For International Wires Also Include Swift Code (for both US and Foreign Funds): WFBIUS6S
Please include the invoice number as a reference when sending the wire. 21878576

Check Information
Bracewell LLP
P.O. Box 207486
Dallas, TX 75320-7486
Tax ID 74-1024827

Courier Information
Wells Fargo Lockbox Services
P.O. Box 207486
2975 Regent Blvd
Irving, TX 75063

Credit Card Information: https://www.e-billexpress.com/ebpp/Bracewell/



 

Clark Stockton Lord 
Senior Counsel 
 

T: 713.221.1202            F: 800-404-3970 
711 Louisiana Street, Suite 2300, Houston, Texas 77002-2770 
Clark.Lord@bracewell.com            bracewell.com 

 

A U S T I N   C O N N E C T I C U T   D A L L A S   D U B A I   H O U S T O N   L O N D O N   N E W  Y O R K   S A N  A N T O N I O   S E A T T L E   W A S H I N G T O N ,  D C  

June 2, 2020 

 

VIA E-MAIL MELISSACPA@THEMORTONASSOCIATES.COM  

Ms. Melissa Morton 
The Morton Accounting Services 
1125 Cypress Station Drive 
Building H-4 
Houston, TX 77090 

 

 
Re:   Hardy/Near Northside Redevelopment Authority/TIRZ 21  

       Meeting Services – 0037619.03 
  

Dear Ms. Morton: 

Enclosed is our firm invoice for the above-captioned matter for services rendered through May 31, 2020.   
Please remit payment at your earliest convenience. 

Very truly yours, 

 
 
 
Clark Stockton Lord 
Partner 

Enclosure 



Hardy/Near Northside Redevelopment Authority
Melissa Morton, Bookkeeper
1125 Cypress Station Drive
Building H-4
Houston, TX 77090

June 02, 2020
Invoice Number 21881076

BA: 04674 Clark Stockton Lord

Our Matter #: 0037619.000003 For Services Through May 31, 2020
Meeting Services

Bracewell LLP    711 Louisiana Street, Suite 2300  Houston, Texas 77002       bracewell.com

AUSTIN               CONNECTICUT               DALLAS               DUBAI              HOUSTON              LONDON              NEW YORK              SAN ANTONIO              SEATTLE             WASHINGTON, DC

Date Description Timekeeper Hours Rate Amount

05/20/20 Receive and inspect original publication certification for 
project plan amendments; Attention to Liberty Mutual 
contract bond query.

Tiffany M. Ehmke 0.40  297.00  118.80

05/20/20 Receive and respond to correspondence.  Update 
calendar for meetings.

Brenda Presser 0.50  315.00  157.50

Total Fees $ 276.30 

Summary of Fees

Timekeeper Title Hours Rate Amount

Tiffany M. Ehmke Paralegal 0.40  297.00  118.80
Brenda Presser Paralegal 0.50  315.00  157.50

Total Summary of Fees
0.90 $ 276.30

Total Fees, Expenses and Charges $ 276.30



REMITTANCE PAGE

Client: Hardy/Near Northside Redevelopment Authority June 02, 2020
Matter: Meeting Services Invoice Number. 21881076

Matter No:  0037619.000003

Bracewell LLP    711 Louisiana Street, Suite 2300  Houston, Texas 77002       bracewell.com

AUSTIN               CONNECTICUT               DALLAS               DUBAI              HOUSTON              LONDON              NEW YORK              SAN ANTONIO              SEATTLE             WASHINGTON, DC

Total Fees $ 276.30 

Total Expenses $ 0.00

Total Fees, Expenses and Charges $ 276.30

Total Current Billing for this Matter $ 276.30

Balance Forward $ 4,828.50

Please Remit Total Balance Due $ 5,104.80

PLEASE RETURN THIS REMITTANCE PAGE WITH YOUR PAYMENT

Wire Transfer Information

Wire to:        Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.   420 Montgomery   San Francisco, CA 94104

Name on Account: Bracewell LLP
Bank Account No: 5436952757
ABA Number (For Wire Transfers Only) : 121000248;  (For ACH'S Only): 111900659
For International Wires Also Include Swift Code (for both US and Foreign Funds): WFBIUS6S
Please include the invoice number as a reference when sending the wire. 21881076

Check Information
Bracewell LLP
P.O. Box 207486
Dallas, TX 75320-7486
Tax ID 74-1024827

Courier Information
Wells Fargo Lockbox Services
P.O. Box 207486
2975 Regent Blvd
Irving, TX 75063

Credit Card Information: https://www.e-billexpress.com/ebpp/Bracewell/



 

Clark Stockton Lord 
Partner 
 

T: +1.713.221.1202            F: +1.800.404.3970 
711 Louisiana Street, Suite 2300, Houston, Texas 77002-2770 
clark.lord@bracewell.com            bracewell.com 

 
A U S T I N   C O N N E C T I C U T   D A L L A S   D U B A I   H O U S T O N   L O N D O N   N E W  Y O R K   S A N  A N T O N I O   S E A T T L E   W A S H I N G T O N ,  D C  

 

July 2, 2020 

VIA E-MAIL MELISSACPA@THEMORTONASSOCIATES.COM  

Ms. Melissa Morton 
The Morton Accounting Services 
1125 Cypress Station Drive 
Building H-4 
Houston, TX 77090 

 

 
Re:   Hardy/Near Northside Redevelopment Authority/TIRZ 21  

       General Counsel – 0037619.02 
Meeting Services – 0037619.03 

  

Dear Ms. Morton: 

Enclosed are our firm invoices for the above-captioned matters for services rendered through June 30, 
2020.   Please remit payment at your earliest convenience. 

Very truly yours, 

 
 
 
Clark Stockton Lord 
Partner 

Enclosure 

cc:  Ralph DeLeon via e-mail 



Hardy/Near Northside Redevelopment Authority
Melissa Morton, Bookkeeper
1125 Cypress Station Drive
Building H-4
Houston, TX 77090

July 02, 2020
Invoice Number 21883434

BA: 04674 Clark Stockton Lord

Our Matter #: 0037619.000001 For Services Through June 30, 2020
General Counsel

Bracewell LLP    711 Louisiana Street, Suite 2300  Houston, Texas 77002       bracewell.com

AUSTIN               CONNECTICUT               DALLAS               DUBAI              HOUSTON              LONDON              NEW YORK              SAN ANTONIO              SEATTLE             WASHINGTON, DC

Date Description Timekeeper Hours Rate Amount

06/01/20 Prepare for Board meeting; revise agenda, review 
engineering contract

Clark Stockton Lord 1.00  400.00  400.00

06/03/20 Revise agenda; handle Hardy Yards development 
agreement issues.

Clark Stockton Lord 1.00  400.00  400.00

06/08/20 Prepare for and attend board meeting, Clark Stockton Lord 2.00  400.00  800.00

06/24/20 Revise engineering contract. Clark Stockton Lord 1.00  400.00  400.00

Total Fees $ 2,000.00 

Summary of Fees

Timekeeper Title Hours Rate Amount

Clark Stockton Lord Partner 5.00  400.00  2,000.00

Total Summary of Fees
5.00 $ 2,000.00

Total Fees, Expenses and Charges $ 2,000.00



REMITTANCE PAGE

Client: Hardy/Near Northside Redevelopment Authority July 02, 2020
Matter: General Counsel Invoice Number. 21883434

Matter No:  0037619.000001

Bracewell LLP    711 Louisiana Street, Suite 2300  Houston, Texas 77002       bracewell.com

AUSTIN               CONNECTICUT               DALLAS               DUBAI              HOUSTON              LONDON              NEW YORK              SAN ANTONIO              SEATTLE             WASHINGTON, DC

Total Fees $ 2,000.00 

Total Expenses $ 0.00

Total Fees, Expenses and Charges $ 2,000.00

Total Current Billing for this Matter $ 2,000.00

Balance Forward $ 0.00

Please Remit Total Balance Due $ 2,000.00

PLEASE RETURN THIS REMITTANCE PAGE WITH YOUR PAYMENT

Wire Transfer Information

Wire to:        Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.   420 Montgomery   San Francisco, CA 94104

Name on Account: Bracewell LLP
Bank Account No: 5436952757
ABA Number (For Wire Transfers Only) : 121000248;  (For ACH'S Only): 111900659
For International Wires Also Include Swift Code (for both US and Foreign Funds): WFBIUS6S
Please include the invoice number as a reference when sending the wire. 21883434

Check Information
Bracewell LLP
P.O. Box 207486
Dallas, TX 75320-7486
Tax ID 74-1024827

Courier Information
Wells Fargo Lockbox Services
P.O. Box 207486
2975 Regent Blvd
Irving, TX 75063

Credit Card Information: https://www.e-billexpress.com/ebpp/Bracewell/



Hardy/Near Northside Redevelopment Authority
Melissa Morton, Bookkeeper
1125 Cypress Station Drive
Building H-4
Houston, TX 77090

July 02, 2020
Invoice Number 21883398

BA: 04674 Clark Stockton Lord

Our Matter #: 0037619.000003 For Services Through June 30, 2020
Meeting Services

Bracewell LLP    711 Louisiana Street, Suite 2300  Houston, Texas 77002       bracewell.com

AUSTIN               CONNECTICUT               DALLAS               DUBAI              HOUSTON              LONDON              NEW YORK              SAN ANTONIO              SEATTLE             WASHINGTON, DC

Date Description Timekeeper Hours Rate Amount

06/01/20 Draft minutes.  Draft agenda.  Discussion with 
administrator regarding follow up tasks and pending 
matters.  Draft form of Master Agreement for 
Engineering Services.

Brenda Presser 4.50  315.00  1,417.50

06/02/20 Receive and respond to District correspondence. Brenda Presser 1.00  315.00  315.00

06/03/20 Revise form of Master Engineering Service Contract.  
Look up current rates on City of Houston web site for 
engineering.  Receive and respond to District 
correspondence in preparation of meeting.

Brenda Presser 3.00  315.00  945.00

06/04/20 Receive and review correspondence. Brenda Presser 0.50  315.00  157.50

06/05/20 Prepare and file City of Houston's annual filing 
requirement of COI's; Coordinate with administrator 
regarding the same.

Tiffany M. Ehmke 0.50  297.00  148.50

06/08/20 Prepare for and participate in meeting of the Board.  
Post meeting follow up. Update agenda calendar.

Brenda Presser 3.50  315.00  1,102.50

06/09/20 Coordinate with attorney regarding form of engineering 
services agreement.  Receive and review 
correspondence.

Brenda Presser 0.50  315.00  157.50

06/10/20 Receive and review District correspondence. Brenda Presser 0.50  315.00  157.50

Total Fees $ 4,401.00 



Page 2

Client: Hardy/Near Northside Redevelopment Authority July 02, 2020
Invoice  Number: 21883398

Bracewell LLP    711 Louisiana Street, Suite 2300  Houston, Texas 77002       bracewell.com

AUSTIN               CONNECTICUT               DALLAS               DUBAI              HOUSTON              LONDON              NEW YORK              SAN ANTONIO              SEATTLE             WASHINGTON, DC

Summary of Fees

Timekeeper Title Hours Rate Amount

Tiffany M. Ehmke Paralegal 0.50  297.00  148.50
Brenda Presser Paralegal 13.50  315.00  4,252.50

Total Summary of Fees
14.00 $ 4,401.00

Expense Detail

Date Cost Description Amount

06/05/20 Delivery Services/Messenger 3rd Party Courier 2020-06-05 Clark Stockton Lord 
#404249

24.00

Total Expenses $ 24.00

Total Fees, Expenses and Charges $ 4,425.00



REMITTANCE PAGE

Client: Hardy/Near Northside Redevelopment Authority July 02, 2020
Matter: Meeting Services Invoice Number. 21883398

Matter No:  0037619.000003

Bracewell LLP    711 Louisiana Street, Suite 2300  Houston, Texas 77002       bracewell.com

AUSTIN               CONNECTICUT               DALLAS               DUBAI              HOUSTON              LONDON              NEW YORK              SAN ANTONIO              SEATTLE             WASHINGTON, DC

Total Fees $ 4,401.00 

Total Expenses $ 24.00

Total Fees, Expenses and Charges $ 4,425.00

Total Current Billing for this Matter $ 4,425.00

Balance Forward $ 0.00

Please Remit Total Balance Due $ 4,425.00

PLEASE RETURN THIS REMITTANCE PAGE WITH YOUR PAYMENT

Wire Transfer Information

Wire to:        Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.   420 Montgomery   San Francisco, CA 94104

Name on Account: Bracewell LLP
Bank Account No: 5436952757
ABA Number (For Wire Transfers Only) : 121000248;  (For ACH'S Only): 111900659
For International Wires Also Include Swift Code (for both US and Foreign Funds): WFBIUS6S
Please include the invoice number as a reference when sending the wire. 21883398

Check Information
Bracewell LLP
P.O. Box 207486
Dallas, TX 75320-7486
Tax ID 74-1024827

Courier Information
Wells Fargo Lockbox Services
P.O. Box 207486
2975 Regent Blvd
Irving, TX 75063

Credit Card Information: https://www.e-billexpress.com/ebpp/Bracewell/



INVOICE Date: 6/2/2020 
Invoice # Number 15 

 

TIFWorks, LLC 

P.O. Box 10330 

Houston, Texas 77206 

(832)-978-5910 

rdeleon1028@sbcglobal.net 

   To Ed Reyes 

Chairman of the Board 

Hardy/Near Northside Redevelopment Authority 

Tax Increment Investment Zone Number 

Twenty-One, City of Houston 

  
 

S a l e s p e r s o n  J o b  P a y m e n t  
T e r m s  

Ralph De Leon Hardy/Near Northside Redevelopment Authority  
General Consulting Services  

Due Upon 
Receipt  

 

Q t y  D e s c r i p t i o n  U n i t  P r i c e  L i n e  T o t a l  

Labor (Hours) Meetings, Travel, Mileage, Electronic Correspondence and Telephone Calls:    

4 

Electronic and telephonic correspondence April 1, 2020 
thru June 2, 2020, including RFQ Selection Committee, 
Bracewell, Gauge Engineering, Walter P. Moore, Binkley & 
Barfield, Raba Kistner Consultants, ING Garza, PGAL, 
HNTB, Deltek, WGI, and Cypress Reality.  

$150.00 $600.00 

1.25 

5/13/2020 – process Houston Business Journal Invoice 
Check needed for payment of RFQ Notice that appeared in 
HBJ on 3/20/2020 and 3/27/2020, including mileage and 
travel to Ed and Sylvia for signature and counter signature.  

$150.00 $187.50 

5 

5/20/2020 – 5/30/2020 – Research and Budget Preparation 
needed to draft Fiscal Year 2021 Annual Operating Budget 
of the Authority and 5-Year CIP Budget of the Zone, 
including summary and distribution of same.  

$150.00 $750.00 

5 
6/2/2020 – Selection Committee Pre-Interview Meeting, 
interviews with finalist, including preparation for same.  $150.00 $750.00 

    
    

  
   

S u b t o t a l  
 

  $2,287.50 
 

T o t a l  
 

$2,28750 
 

Make all checks payable to TIFWorks, LLC 

Thank you for your business! 
 



McCALL GIBSON SWEDLUND BARFOOT PLLC 
Certified Public Accountants 

 
   
 13100 Wortham Center Drive   
 Suite 235  9600 Great Hills Trail 
 Houston, Texas 77065-5610  Suite 150W
 (713) 462-0341  Austin, Texas 78759 
 Fax (713) 462-2708  (512) 610-2209 

 E-Mail: mgsb@mgsbpllc.com  www.mgsbpllc.com 

 

Member of 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants 

Texas Society of Certified Public Accountants 

October 1, 2019 

 

 

 

 

Hardy/Near Northside Redevelopment Authority 

c/o Melissa C. Morton, CPA 

The Morton Accounting Services 

1125 Cypress Station Drive 

Building H4 

Houston, TX 77090 

 

Client Number:  300-20 
 

 
 

     We appreciate your business! 
 

                Chris Swedlund 

 

Audit of Hardy/Near Northside Redevelopment Authority as of and for the year ended 

June 30, 2019, including distribution of the report and meeting with the Board of 

Directors and receiving comments from the City of Houston on the draft audit. 

 

 Annual Audit Fee $     8,250.00 

 

                                                    Postage, delivery and report production            250.00 

 

                                                      Less Interim Billing                    6,500.00 

 

 Balance Due $     2,000.00 

 

mailto:mgsb@mgsbpllc.com
http://www.mgsbpllc.com/


Invoice
Date

5/29/2020

Invoice #

2053

Bill To

Hardy Near/Northside Redevelopment Auth
711 Louisiana St Suite 2300
Houston, TX 77002

Terms

Net 15

Due Date

6/13/2020

Total

Balance Due

Payments/Credits

Please Remit Payment to:
The Morton Accounting Service

1125 Cypress Station Dr. Bldg H-4
Houston, TX 77090

or via the Intuit payment link in the email.

Serviced Description Hours Rate Amount

1/7/2020 Transition costs - fix Quickbooks file for transition, set up budget,
organize layout and formatting

2.10861 125.00 263.58

1/7/2020 Transition costs - setting up financial statement templates 0.84778 125.00 105.97
1/10/2020 Transition costs - call with bankers re: deletion of old CPA profile 0.15791 125.00 19.74
1/16/2020 Transition costs - working with bank to transition CPA firms 0.10311 125.00 12.89
1/22/2020 Transition costs - Send completed resolution to banker, answer

banker questions for transition
0.45709 125.00 57.14

1/23/2020 Transition costs - speaking with Donna at Compass 0.25478 125.00 31.85
2/4/2020 Transition costs - working with Ralph and banker to get form

completed, address and contact information changed on account
0.34067 125.00 42.58

3/2/2020 Set up online access to Bank account 0.47833 125.00 59.79
5/31/2020 Accounting/CPA Services and Investment Officer - January,

February, March, April and May
5 900.00 4,500.00

$5,093.54

$5,093.54

$0.00



Invoice
Date

6/30/2020

Invoice #

2072

Bill To

Hardy Near/Northside Redevelopment Auth
711 Louisiana St Suite 2300
Houston, TX 77002

Terms

Net 15

Due Date

7/15/2020

Total

Balance Due

Payments/Credits

Please Remit Payment to:
The Morton Accounting Service

1125 Cypress Station Dr. Bldg H-4
Houston, TX 77090

or via the Intuit payment link in the email.

Serviced Description Hours Rate Amount

6/30/2020 Accounting/CPA Services and Investment Officer - June 1 900.00 900.00
6/30/2020 Postage 1 14.22 14.22

$914.22

$914.22

$0.00





TY2019 TIRZ City Increment

# TIRZ Name
Jurisdiction 

Code Fund # City Increment

Affordable 
Housing Transfer 

to Fund 2409

City Admin. Fee 
Transfer to Fund 

1000
Total Increment 

Amount Due Payee
SAP Budget
Number

1. Lamar Terrace 7512 2,773,122.58$       924,374.20$        138,656.13$        1,710,092.25$          St. George Place RA 100619651
       Original 577 1,756,918.13 585,639.38         87,845.91           1,083,432.84           

       Annexed 800 1,016,204.45 338,734.82         50,810.22           626,659.41              

9. South Post Oak 7557 600,303.21$          N/A 30,015.16$          570,288.05$             South Post Oak RA 100619652
       Original 589 400,371.18 20,018.56           380,352.62              

       Annexed 830 199,932.03 9,996.60             189,935.43              

11. Greater Greenspoint 590 7559 4,637,594.52$       N/A 231,879.73$        4,405,714.79$          Greater Greenspoint RA 100619653
15. East Downtown 7563 2,850,277.65$       N/A 142,513.88$        2,707,763.77$          East Downtown RA 100619654

       Original 596 1,241,085.62 62,054.28           1,179,031.34           

       Annexed 938 1,609,192.03 80,459.60           1,528,732.43           

17. Memorial City 7565 16,864,544.82$     N/A 843,227.24$        $16,021,317.58 Memorial City RA 100619655
       Original 977 16,864,544.82 843,227.24         16,021,317.58          
       Annexed (2011) 927 -                         -                      -                           
       Annexed (2014) 908 -                        -                      -                           

19. Upper Kirby 7567 15,305,373.16$     N/A 765,268.66$        14,540,104.50$        Upper Kirby RA 100619656
       Original 598 14,932,184.59 746,609.23         14,185,575.36         

       Annexed (2015) 836 373,188.57 18,659.43           354,529.14              

21. Hardy/Near Northside 794 7569 775,946.95$          258,649.00$        38,797.35$          478,500.60$             Hardy Place RA 100619657
22. Leland Woods 795 7570 120,367.25$          N/A 6,018.36$            114,348.89$             Leland Woods RA 100619658
24. Greater Houston 7581 558,584.44$          N/A 558,584.44$        -$                         100619659

       Original (2012) 920 546,236.53 546,236.53         

       Annexed (2015) 839 12,347.91 12,347.91           

Total 44,486,114.58$     1,183,023.20$     2,754,960.95$     40,548,130.43$        



Tax Year 2019 Payment Cypress Development for CR V Hardy Yards, L.P.

Tax Year 2019 Increment: 

Gross Increment 775,946.95$         

Less City Admin Fee (38,797.35)$          

Less City Affordable Housing (258,649.00)$        

Less Estimated Zone Operating Costs (35,607.00)$          

Available for Reimbursement 442,893.60$         

On-Site Payment (28%) 124,010.60$         

Off-Site Payment (72%) 318,883.00$         

442,893.60$         



 
#6200111.1 

BCycle Station at Hardy Yards 

 

 

Funding Information: 

• $100,509 - full amount 

o $58,298 - Federal Grant $$$ 
o $14,575 - CM Cisneros 
o $10,000 - NRP 
o $17,636 - GNMD & TIRZ 

 

























































TASK ORDER NO. 1 
 

 

3200 Wilcrest Drive, Suite 220   •    Houston, Texas 77042    •    713.318.8800 

July 6th, 2020 
 

 Ed Reyes, Chairman 
Hardy/Near Northside Redevelopment Authority/TIRZ 21 

 c/o Bracewell, LLP and Tifworks  
 711 Louisiana Street, Suite 2300 
 Houston, Texas 77002 

 
Re: Proposal to Provide On-Call Engineering Consulting Services to Hardy/Near Northside 
Redevelopment Authority TIRZ 21 
 
Dear Ms. Reyes, 
 
Gauge Engineering, LLC (Gauge) is pleased to submit this proposal for on-call engineering consulting 

services. Gauge will provide support services as requested and authorized by the Board of Directors or as 

directed by the Administrator. Gauge anticipates the scope of services to include various tasks to assist in 

implementing the capital improvement program such as attending meetings, public information development, 

planning level tasks, cost estimates and other miscellaneous tasks. 

Time will be billed on an hourly basis, not to exceed $10,000, at the rates shown on the attached rate sheet, 

Exhibit A. Please feel free to contact me at (713) 254-5946 if you have any questions or need additional 

information. 

      
Sincerely,      Accepted for  
      Hardy/Near Northside Redevelopment Authority/TIRZ 21 
 
 
 
Muhammad Ali, P.E.            
Principal     Signature    Date 
 
     
Attachments:             
Exhibit A –Hourly Rate Schedule   Print 
 
 

Accepted for 
City of Houston 

  
 
              
      Signature    Date 
 
              

    Print 
 



Exhibit A

Classification Rate per Hr.

1 Principal $275

2 Sr. Project Manager $225

3 Project Manager $175

4 Construction Manager $170

5 Senior Project Engineer $165

6 Project Engineer $150

7 GIS Specialist $130

8 Graduate Engineer $120

9 Senior Designer $115

10 Inspector $110

11 Project Administrator $110

12 CADD Tech $90

13 Administrative Assistant $85

14 Clerical $65



TASK ORDER NO. 2 
 

3200 Wilcrest Drive, Suite 220   •    Houston, Texas 77042    •    713.318.8800 

July 6th, 2020 
 

 Ed Reyes, Chairman 
Hardy/Near Northside Redevelopment Authority/TIRZ 21 

 c/o Bracewell, LLP and Tifworks  
 711 Louisiana Street, Suite 2300 
 Houston, Texas 77002 
 
 Re: Proposal for Capital Improvement Plan Development 
 

Dear Ms. Reyes, 
 
Gauge Engineering, LLC (Gauge) is pleased to submit this proposal for the preparation of a Capital 

Improvement Plan (CIP) for the Hardy/Near Northside Redevelopment Authority/TIRZ 21. A drainage and 

mobility assessment will be conducted to assist with the development of the plan. The CIP will provide a 

practical approach for the TIRZ to prioritize and implement projects and will ultimately establish a complete 

roadmap and capital project plan for the TIRZ.   

We propose to perform these services over a 12-month duration for a lump sum amount of $250,000. A detailed 

breakdown of the scope items and fee can be found under Exhibits “A” and “B” respectively. We are prepared to 

begin this work immediately. Please feel free to contact me at (713) 254-5946 if you have any questions or need 

additional information. 

Sincerely,      Accepted for  
      Hardy/Near Northside Redevelopment Authority/TIRZ 21 
 
 
 
Muhammad Ali, P.E.            
Principal     Signature    Date 
 
     
Attachments:             
Exhibit A – Scope    Print 
Exhibit B – Level-of-Effort 
 

Accepted for 
City of Houston 

  
 
       
              
      Signature    Date 
 
 
              

    Print 
 



7/7/2020 

 

Page 1 of 5 
 

Hardy/Near Northside 
Redevelopment Authority/TIRZ 21 

EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

TIRZ 21-CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

This Scope of Services outlines the professional engineering services needed for the preparation of an 
initial Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) for the Hardy/Near Northside Redevelopment Authority/TIRZ 21. A 
drainage and multimodal mobility assessment will be conducted to assist with the development of the plan. 
The CIP will provide a practical approach for the TIRZ to prioritize and implement projects and will 
ultimately establish a complete roadmap and capital project plan for the TIRZ.   

The plan will be carried by implementing the following procedures: 

- Compile, review and build on all previously conducted studies in the area 

- Conduct a high-level drainage analysis to better understand the performance of the drainage 
infrastructure that serves the TIRZ 21 area. This effort will also include the determination of the 
various sources of flooding including overland/overflow, collection system, and the adjacent 
contributing watersheds.   

- Provide an assessment of mobility and accessibility conditions within the TIRZ 21 boundary and 
may include adjacent projects and connections beneficial to the TIRZ area. The multimodal mobility 
assessment is intended for use to support development of future recommendations and a capital 
project plan for TIRZ 21. 

Gauge shall accomplish the following Tasks: 

A. DRAINAGE ANALYSIS: 

1. Data Collection, Site Visits and Data Processing 

Research and collect available utility improvement information (City), rain gauge data, GIS 
basemap data, historic flood complaints (City of Houston/HCFCD), repetitive flood loss claims, 
record drawings (limited/as-needed) and any other relevant information for the study. The hydraulic 
network will be created within a GIS geodatabase that will incorporate available storm drain 
infrastructure within the study region. We will collect topographic and existing storm drain 
infrastructure data through site visits that will fuel the drainage analysis. A topographic or asset 
survey is not part of this scope of work. Site visits will be conducted, as necessary to verify and 
supplement digital data. 

2. Hydrologic and Hydraulic Analysis: 

Gauge will utilize 2-dimensional modeling with rainfall applied directly to the 2D surface (created 
from LiDAR) to efficiently assess the study area. Rainfall hyteographs and other hydrologic 
parameters will be developed for the different flood frequency events. This effort will be based on 
limited analysis of the sub-surface drainage system.  A more extensive evaluation of the sub-
surface system targeted to identified problem areas is proposed for future CIP planning phases.  

a) Develop and Analyze Existing Conditions Model: 
Storm sewer information from the City of Houston GIMS site for the major storm sewer trunk lines 
will be used as the basis for the modeling along with the 2018 surface LiDAR.  Gauge will analyze 
the region for the 2-, 10-, and 100-year, 24-hour storm events. The analysis will follow the City’s 2D 
stormwater modeling guidelines and industry standard best practices. Gauge will utilize analysis 



7/7/2020 

 

Page 2 of 5 
 

Hardy/Near Northside 
Redevelopment Authority/TIRZ 21 

tools and custom templates to evaluate and analyze the results. Exhibits and simulation videos will 
be developed to depict the water flow path and flooding causes.   

b) Summary of Understanding and Problem Area Description: 
Gauge will define discrete problem areas based on flooding patterns and logical infrastructure 
zones.  The specific cause(s) of flooding for each problem area will be identified and documented.  
Defining the causes of flooding is the key step in developing effective solutions.  

c) Initial Solution Concept Development: 
Initial solution concepts to the drainage problems will be developed.  This generally involves laying 
out solution alternatives with approximate sizes and limited modeling to test their effectiveness. 
Solution concepts that are anticipated to be explored include improved sub-surface conveyance, 
improved overland conveyance, and underground and surface detention. Potential challenges such 
as ROW or environmental impacts will begin to be identified.  The intent for this task is to set up the 
capital improvement planning effort.   

d) Storm Sewer Sizing for TIRZ Capital Projects:  
This effort involves the development of a master drainage concept for the TIRZ and includes 
detailed analysis to advance the solution concepts and size the proposed infrastructure.  Of critical 
importance is the ability to demonstrate no adverse impact for the different improvement projects.  
This report does not constitute the formal no-adverse impact analysis that is required for each 
individual CIP project, but it does define mitigation requirements for each project for planning 
purposes.  Formal impact analysis reports will be required for all CIP projects but their effort will be 
reduced as they will build upon the analysis performed for this study. 

 

B. MOBILITY STUDY 

1. Baseline Conditions & Mobility Fact Book  

The first phase of the project will build a meaningful fact base to make informed decisions and identify 
opportunities. This will use existing data from H-GAC, TxDOT, Harris County, City of Houston, 
METRO, and other agencies as appropriate to compile all data and develop a Fact Book of conditions 
for each mode of transportation. Data from recent plans and programmed capital projects will be 
included in the data collection.   

Details of data collection includes the following:  

• Base map of transportations systems for study area - this will include the existing roadways, 
and signalized intersections, hike & bike trails, on-street bike routes, and fixed route transit 
service lines and stop locations.  

• Transportation Data Collection – Traffic, transit, bike, and pedestrian data will be collected and 
specific to identifying where facilities exist and current usage, including available corridor and 
intersection traffic counts and speed data from the City of Houston.   

• Crash Data – five years of crash data will be collected to assess high crash locations, hot spots 
and safety trends for all crashes, including those involving pedestrians and bicyclists.  

• Plan review including planned and funded projects – Review existing plans and identify project 
including:  



7/7/2020 

 

Page 3 of 5 
 

Hardy/Near Northside 
Redevelopment Authority/TIRZ 21 

o TxDOT’s North Houston Highway Improvement Project and comments from City of 
Houston and Harris County  

o City of Houston’s CIP (e.g., Hogan/Lorraine, Fulton) and Area Plans (e.g., Bike Plan, 
Near Northside Complete Communities, Walkable Places Pilot)  

o Metro’s METRONext Long Range Plan & the Cavalcade First/Last Mile Improvements  

o HCTRA’s Hardy Extension including UP Rail bridge crossings  

o Harris County/City of Houston Bikeway projects (e.g., Hardy/Elysian)  

o North Canal Bypass  

o Northside Management District and METRO’s Quitman projects  

o Rice Kinder Institute’s sidewalk assessment 

o Other projects as identified by the TIRZ.  

The Gauge team will develop a factbook of key data and findings based upon data collected in Task 1 that 
highlights initial opportunities to be refined in Task 2. 

2. Mobility Assessment & Network Prioritization  

Building off the opportunity identification in Task 1 the Gauge team will refine, update, and prioritize 
opportunities for the TIRZ. During this project phase, the following key analyses will be conducted:   

• Safety through crash hot spot analysis with attention to crashes involving vulnerable roadway users 
(people walking and biking). Crash hot spots in areas near destinations such as transit stations, 
schools, parks, or other important community destinations will be identified.  

• Gap analysis in the multimodal network for walking, biking, and transit. This is particularly effective 
for evaluating first and final mile access to transit, access to key destinations like Buffalo Bayou, 
multimodal nodes, and walkable places.   

• Inventory and gap analysis for parks, greenspaces, and public plazas. These locations contribute 
to the sense of place and can foster community health benefits.   

• Assessment of current transportation network conditions, including traffic volumes, corridor right-of-
way, surrounding land uses, vehicle and bike lanes and widths, sidewalks and trails, and analysis 
of on-street biking facilities.  

• Current and future travel demand analysis with an emphasis on mode share (transit ridership, 
walking, biking, and SOV trips), short trips, and commuting patterns.   

• Access-shed analysis using GIS tools to identify barriers and the level of multimodal access around 
key destinations and transit stops. Up to 5 key destinations and transit stops will be analyzed and 
identified with the study area.  

Based on the data and analysis collected and input from the TIRZ, the Gauge team will develop 
recommended mobility networks, a prioritized project list including maps, project descriptions, planning 
level cost estimates and implementation strategies. 

3. Evaluation of Intersections with Inadequate Right Turn Radii 

The zone has roadway intersections with curb return radii that are inadequate making it very difficult 
for larger vehicles and emergency vehicles such as fire trucks to make right-turn lanes. The Gauge 



7/7/2020 

 

Page 4 of 5 
 

Hardy/Near Northside 
Redevelopment Authority/TIRZ 21 

will identify these intersections and evaluate them using AutoTURN software. A practical approach will 
be identified to remediate these intersections. 

 

C. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLANNING  

Capital improvement planning begins with the coupling of the identified drainage improvement concepts 
with identified TIRZ safety and mobility projects.   

a) CIP Projects Identification:  
Based on the data gathered such as pavement condition index, and the mobility & drainage 
analysis conducted, a list of projects will be identified. The plan often results in two distinct project 
categories – smaller more easily implementable low hanging fruit projects, and major capital 
improvement projects. 

b) Planning Level Cost Estimates: 
Planning level cost estimates for improvement recommendations will be prepared. Planning level 
cost estimates will seek to establish the major cost related items to constructing each CIP project. 
Recent City and TIRZ’s bid tabs will be utilized in developing the proposed unit costs.  Individual 
project worksheets will be developed that justify and describe the project and include key project 
facts.   

c) Prioritize Recommended Improvement Projects 
The recommended improvement projects will be prioritized according to project benefit and 
necessary project sequencing to prevent interim project impacts. A detailed evaluation and 
prioritization matrix will be developed with input for the TIRZ Board and Administrator.  
Consideration will be given to items such as project overlap/influence with known CIP projects, 
constructability, and construction impact to community.  

d) Study Report and Results Summary: 
Gauge will develop a summary report that will consist of a discussion of the work accomplished, 
general methodology, assumptions applied during the course of study, study goal, the reported 
drainage problems, structural flooding, system capacity issues, findings & recommendations. A 
draft report will be compiled to include text, model output, exhibits, and appendices for the 
Authority's review. A sign and sealed report will be submitted to TIRZ 21 after all their comments 
have been addressed and incorporated if necessary.  

e) Public Engagement  
With specific authorization by the TIRZ Board or Administrator, Gauge will lead one public 
engagement meeting to gather information from the public, and to inform and educate the public. 
Gauge will prepare the public meeting material and will coordinate with TIRZ 21 and Administrator.   

D. MANAGEMENT AND COORDINATION 

a) General Project Management: 
General Project Management/Project Controls activities are ongoing throughout the period of the 
contract.  This effort includes managing the project schedule, developing and managing the project 
work plan, managing the project team and general project communication.   

 



7/7/2020 

 

Page 5 of 5 
 

Hardy/Near Northside 
Redevelopment Authority/TIRZ 21 

b) Project Coordination Meetings:  
Project meetings will include one (1) Kickoff meeting with the team. Additional meetings include 
monthly team meetings, and general coordination meetings with TIRZ 21 or Administrator. 

c) Quality Control: 
Gauge’s standard quality control plan will be followed throughout the life of the study. This includes 
independent reviews of technical work such as modeling inputs/results by qualified engineers, and 
a thorough review of all deliverables.   



DESCRIPTION OF WORK TASKS  
Sr. PROJ 

MGR

Sr. PROJ 

ENGINEER

GRAD 

ENGINEER
CADD TECH

ADMIN 

ASST

TOTAL 

HOURS

 LABOR 

COSTS 

A. Drainage Analysis
1 Data Collection, Site Visits and Data Processing 6 12 48 24 1 91 $11,335.00

2 Hydrologic and Hydraulic Analysis

a. Develop and Analyze Existing Conditions Model 20 120 220 60 420 $56,100.00

b. Summary of Understanding and Problem Area Descriptions 12 24 36 72 $10,980.00

c. Initial Solution Concept Development 12 32 48 92 $13,740.00

d. Storm Sewer Sizing for TIRZ Capital Projects 12 60 140 212 $29,400.00
Total 62 248 492 84 1 887 $121,555.00

B. Mobility Study 
1 Data Collection & Opportunity Identification 8 18 60 32 118 $14,850.00

2 Mobility Assessment & Prioritization 16 60 140 48 264 $34,620.00

3 Evaluation of Intersections with Inadequate Right Turn Radii 2 12 32 40 86 $9,870.00
Total 26 90 232 120 0 468 $59,340.00

C. Capital Improvement Planning
1 CIP Projects Identification 6 16 24 12 58 $7,950.00

2 Planning Level Cost Estimates 4 12 24 40 $5,760.00

3 Prioritize Recommended Improvement Projects 6 8 12 26 $4,110.00

4 Study Report and Results Summary 12 24 32 16 2 86 $12,110.00

5 Public Engagement (as Authorized) 10 24 36 40 2 112 $14,300.00
Total 38 84 128 68 4 322 $44,230.00

D. Management and Coordination
1 General Project Management 12 24 3 39 $6,915.00

2 Project Coordination Meetings 10 18 12 16 1 57 $8,185.00

3 Quality Control 12 16 12 16 56 $8,220.00
Total 34 58 24 32 4 152 $23,320.00

TOTAL HOURS 160 480 876 304 9 1829

Contract Labor Rate $225.00 $165.00 $120.00 $90.00 $85.00
TOTAL LABOR COSTS BASIC ENGINEERING SERVICES $36,000.00 $79,200.00 $105,120.00 $27,360.00 $765.00 $248,445.00

EXPENSES TOTAL

1 Printing, Reproduction, Mileage, Deliveries $1,555.00 $248,445.00

TOTAL REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES $1,555.00 $1,555.00

$250,000

II. Expenses

GRAND TOTAL

EXHIBIT B

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN
LEVEL-OF-EFFORT

PER TOTAL

I. Basic Services

Hardy/Near Northside 
Redevelopment Authority/TIRZ 21



TASK ORDER NO. 3 
 

 

3200 Wilcrest Drive, Suite 220   •    Houston, Texas 77042    •    713.318.8800 

July 6th, 2020 
 

 Ed Reyes, Chairman 
Hardy/Near Northside Redevelopment Authority/TIRZ 21 

 c/o Bracewell, LLP and Tifworks  
 711 Louisiana Street, Suite 2300 
 Houston, Texas 77002 

 
Re: Proposal to Provide Preliminary Engineering Services on Main Street 
 
Dear Ms. Reyes, 
 
Gauge Engineering, LLC (Gauge) is pleased to submit this proposal for preliminary engineering services for 

improving bicycle and pedestrian safety conditions along the Main Street corridor between IH-45 Feeder 

Roads & Boundary Street. Improvements can potentially include milling and overlay of existing deteriorated 

asphalt pavement, signing & restriping, bicycle facilities, wider sidewalks, shared use path and ped ramp 

replacements. The project will be implemented in 3 phases: Preliminary Engineering (Roadway Schematic & 

Technical Memorandum), Design (PS&E) and Construction. This proposal is to deliver and obtain City’s 

acceptance on phase I – Preliminary Engineering before commencing any design work. 

We propose to perform this work for a lump sum amount of $55,000.  A detailed breakdown of the scope 

items and fee can be found under Exhibit “A” & “B” respectively. We are prepared to begin this work 

immediately. Please feel free to contact me at (713) 254-5946 if you have any questions. 

     
Sincerely,      Accepted for  
      Hardy/Near Northside Redevelopment Authority/TIRZ 21 
 
 
 
Muhammad Ali, P.E.            
Principal     Signature    Date 
     
Attachments:             
Exhibit A – Scope    Print 
Exhibit B – Level-of-Effort 

Accepted for 
City of Houston 

  
      
              
      Signature    Date 
 
              

    Print  



7/7/2020 

 

Page 1 of 2 
 

Hardy/Near Northside 
Redevelopment Authority/TIRZ 21 

EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

MAIN STREET SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS 

This proposal is for professional engineering services for improving bicycle and pedestrian safety 
conditions along the Main Street corridor between IH-45 Feeder Roads & Boundary Street. Improvements 
can potentially include milling and overlay of existing deteriorated asphalt pavement, signing & restriping, 
bicycle facilities, wider sidewalks, shared use path and ped ramp replacements. The project will be 
implemented in 3 phases: Technical Memorandum, Design (PS&E) and Construction. The following scope 
details the procedures that will be followed to provide phase I – Technical Memorandum:  
 

 
Figure 1. Project Location 

A. TECHNICAL MEMORANDUM 

1. Data Collection and Site Visits 
Team will collect all the available data, reports and record drawings (if needed) from the City and 

conduct the necessary site visits to walk the project alignment, observe traffic, pedestrians and 

bicyclists patterns, take measurements and clearly call out the presence of any conflicts or 

obstructions in the plans. 



7/7/2020 

 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Hardy/Near Northside 
Redevelopment Authority/TIRZ 21 

2. Existing Typical Sections 
Existing horizontal dimensions, pavement structure makeup and thickness, right-of-way and 

easements, sidewalks, shoulders, and other physical features will be shown. 

 

3. Two Proposed Alternative Typical Sections 
Proposed horizontal dimensions, milling and overlay thickness and lane dimensions will be shown. 
Two alternatives will be developed. The recommended section will be presented to TIRZ 21 and 
City for their review and approval. 

 
4. Traffic Data – Coordinate, Review and Incorporation 

Traffic data collected will be used to justify the recommended section. The data will ultimately be 
incorporated into the Tech Memo. 
 

5. Preliminary Roadway, Sidewalk and Bike Schematic (3,500 LF) 
A Schematic will be developed utilizing aerial maps, it will depict proposed travel lanes and bicycle 

lane configuration and proposed pedestrian facilities. The schematic will be submitted to the City 

for review and approval. 

 

6. Construction Sequencing and Impacts to Area 
The construction sequence and a traffic control concept that will minimize the impact to the region’s 
traffic movement pattern will be prepared. Detours, phasing, sequencing, construction zones, 
temporary pavement requirements & temporary signalization will be identified. Potential disruptions 
to local businesses and measures to address access during construction will be evaluated. 
 

7. Quantities 
Gauge will develop and report quantities for the schematic. 
 

8. Opinion of Probable Construction Cost (OPCC) 
Gauge will submit Opinion of Probable Construction Cost for the schematic. 
 

9. Technical Memorandum Development 
The team will summarize the results of the study and will present it in a Letter Report format that 
will be submitted to the City for review and comments. It will also include reasoning for the 
recommended section. A budgetary construction cost estimates will also be included. 
 

10. Project Management / Project Controls: 
The Project Manager (PM) will oversee all work and will be responsible for directing and 
coordinating activities and assigned personnel. The PM will manage the project scope, schedule, 
budget, and quality to ensure that the project progresses as agreed. The PM will submit monthly 
invoices, status reports, and schedules. The PM will conduct monthly coordination meetings with 
TIRZ 21, the City and METRO. 
 

11. Quality Assurance / Quality Control: 
A thorough Quality Assurance/Quality Control (QA/QC) of the letter report and schematic will be 
conducted.  



DESCRIPTION OF WORK TASKS  
Sr. PROJ 

MGR

Sr. PROJ 

ENGINEER

GRAD 

ENGINEER
CADD TECH

ADMIN 

ASST

TOTAL 

HOURS

 LABOR 

COSTS 

A. Roadway Schematic & Technical Memorandum
1 Data Collection and Site Visit 4 6 12 6 28 $3,870.00

2 Existing Typical Sections 1 1 4 10 16 $1,770.00

3 Two Proposed Alternative Typical Sections 1 4 6 18 29 $3,225.00

4 Traffic Data - Coordinate, Review and Incorporation 1 2 6 9 $1,275.00

5 Preliminary Roadway, Sidewalk and Bike Schematic (3,500 LF) 4 32 40 60 136 $16,380.00

6 Construction Sequencing and Impacts to Area 2 4 8 14 $2,070.00

7 Quantities 1 2 10 13 $1,755.00

8 Opinion of Probable Construction Cost 1 2 6 9 $1,275.00

9 Technical Memorandum Development 4 8 40 18 70 $8,640.00

10 Project Management

Overall Project Management/Team Coordination/ Project Controls 8 8 6 22 $3,630.00

Project Coordination with City, METRO, TIRZ 21 6 10 4 20 $3,480.00

11 Quality Assurance/Quality Control 4 4 6 8 1 23 $3,085.00
Total 37 83 142 120 7 389 $50,455.00

TOTAL HOURS 37 83 142 120 7 389

Contract Labor Rate $225.00 $165.00 $120.00 $90.00 $85.00
TOTAL LABOR COSTS BASIC ENGINEERING SERVICES $8,325.00 $13,695.00 $17,040.00 $10,800.00 $595.00 $50,455.00

EXPENSES/SUBCONTRACTS TOTAL

1 Printing and Reproduction/Mileage/Deliveries $545.00

2 Traffic Counts (TMC - AM/PM peak hours & 24 hour volumes/speed counts) $4,000.00

TOTAL REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES $4,545.00 $55,000

MAIN STREET SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS

TECHNICAL MEMORANDUM - LEVEL OF EFFORT

PROJECT TOTAL

EXHIBIT BHardy/Near Northside 
Redevelopment Authority/TIRZ 21


	Notice of Meeting 7-13-2020
	3. Authority Minutes of June 8, 2020
	3. Zone Minutes of June 8, 2020
	4. Hardy Near Northside Financial Statements May 2020.pdf
	Unpaid Bills Detail May 2020
	Hardy Financials May 2020 2
	Hardy Financials May 2020
	Profit and Loss Detail May 2020
	Unpaid Bills Detail June 2020
	Invoices

	5. Tax Year 2019 TIRZ City Increment
	Tax Year 2019 Payment

	6. BCycle Station
	8. Master Agreement for Engineering Services
	6.a. Task Order No. 1
	6.b. Task Order No. 2
	6.c. Task Order No. 3




